
 
P&Z Board Agenda - February 27, 2013 - Page 1 of 2 

 

Commencement – 6:30 PM                  Council Chambers – Municipal Complex  
Thursday, February 27, 2014                        600 West Blue Heron Boulevard 
 

If you wish to speak on any item(s) presented on this agenda, please complete a pink public comment card and 
provide it to Planning and Zoning Staff.  Cards must be submitted prior to Board discussion of an item. Thank you. 

 
 

I. MOMENT OF SILENCE AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
Tradrick McCoy, Chairperson  Edward Kunuty, Vice-Chairperson  
S. Lashea Brooks, Board Member  Brian Coulton, Board Member  
Marie Davis, Board Member   Rena James, Board Member (non-voting) 
Julius Whigham, Sr., Board Member   
Kimberley Jackson, 1st Alternate Member Arthur Hamilton, 2nd

 
 Alternate Member  

III. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

IV. DISCLOSURE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – November 14, 2013 
 

VI. PRESENTATIONS – None 
 

VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. (SE-13-12) AN APPLICATION FROM THE FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY (FPL) 
REQUESTING A FINDING THAT THE REMOVAL OF CONDITION OF APPROVAL NUMBER 
14 FROM THE 1974 FPL PETROLEUM STORAGE FACILITY DEVELOPMENT OF 
REGIONAL IMPACT (DRI), WHICH LIMITS FUEL STORAGE TO #6 OIL, IS NOT 
CONSIDERED TO BE A SUBSTANTIAL DEVIATION TO THE DRI AND WILL NOT CREATE 
SIGNIFICANT REGIONAL IMPACTS ON RESOURCES AND FACILITIES IN THE AREA; 
AND APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE AFOREMENTIONED 1974 DRI TO 
REMOVE CONDITION OF APPROVAL NUMBER 14, WHICH RESTRICTS STORAGE OF 
PETROLEUM ON THE SITE TO #6 OIL; AND APPROVAL OF AN AMENDMENT TO THE 
DRI SITE PLAN TO PROVIDE FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT, WHICH INCLUDES THE 
RETROFIT OF AN EXISTING FUEL TANK, A DOUBLE WALL CONTAINMENT SYSTEM, A 
STORMWATER DETENTION POND, FUELING BAYS, LANDSCAPING, AND A 25,000 
GALLON FUEL TANK AT 2400 PORT WEST BOULEVARD. 
 

1.  Presentation  
2.  Public Comments 
3.  Board Comments 

 

B. (LU-14-01) AN APPLICATION FROM THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH REQUESTING 
APPROVAL OF A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE AMENDMENT, FROM INDUSTRIAL 
TO COMMUNITY FACILITY, IN ORDER TO FACILITATE THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE 

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH 
LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY 

 

THE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
Dept. of Community Development:  (561)845-4060 / comdev@rivierabch.com 

 
 

mailto:comdev@rivierabch.com�


 
P&Z Board Agenda - February 27, 2013 - Page 2 of 2 

 

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH PUBLIC SERVICES COMPLEX, LOCATED AT 1481 WEST 15TH

 

 
STREET, ON 13.3 ACRES. 

1.  Presentation  
2.  Public Comments 
3.  Board Comments 
 

C. (RZ-14-01) AN APPLICATION FROM THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH REQUESTING 
APPROVAL OF A ZONING CHANGE, FROM GENERAL INDUSTRIAL TO COMMUNITY 
FACILITY, IN ORDER TO FACILITATE THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE CITY OF RIVIERA 
BEACH PUBLIC SERVICES COMPLEX, LOCATED AT 1481 WEST 15TH

 

 STREET, ON 13.3 
ACRES. 

1.  Presentation  
2.  Public Comments 
3.  Board Comments 
 

D. (SP-14-01) AN APPLICATION FROM THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH REQUESTING 
APPROVAL OF A SITE PLAN AMENDMENT IN ORDER TO FACILITATE THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH PUBLIC SERVICES COMPLEX, 
LOCATED AT 1481 WEST 15TH

 
 STREET, ON 13.3 ACRES. 

1.  Presentation  
2.  Public Comments 
3.  Board Comments 

 
 

IX. GENERAL DISCUSSION 
 

A. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
B. CORESPONDENCE 
C. PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD COMMENTS  

1. Congratulations to Mr. Julius Whigham, Sr. – 2014 Senior Citizen of the Year  
2. Project Updates / Upcoming Projects  
3. Upcoming P&Z Board Meetings – March 13, 2013 / March 27, 2014. 

 
 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTICE: In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons in need of a special 
accommodation to participate in this proceeding shall, within a reasonable time prior to any 
proceeding, contact the office of the Legislative Aide of the City of Riviera Beach, 600 West Blue 
Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404, Telephone 561-845-4095 or TDD 561-840-3350, 
www.rivierabch.com. 

http://www.rivierabch.com/�


 

P&Z Minutes 11.14.2013 - Page 1 of 3 
 

November 14, 2013 - Planning and Zoning Board Meeting 
The Planning and Zoning Board for the City of Riviera Beach met in regular session on 
Thursday, November 14, 2013 in the City Council Chambers, Municipal Complex, 600 West 
Blue Heron Blvd, Riviera Beach, FL 33404. The meeting was called to order at 6:30 PM. A 
moment of silence was followed by the Pledge of Allegiance and roll call. 
 

ROLL CALL 
Tradrick McCoy, Chairperson   Present 
Edward Kunuty, Vice-Chair      Absent 
S. Lashea Brooks, Board Member  Present 
Julius Whigham, Board Member  Absent 
Rena James, Board Member   Absent 
Marie Davis, Board Member   Present 
Brian Coulton, Board Member   Present 
Kimberly Jackson, 1st Alternate   Absent 
Arthur Hamilton, 2nd Alternate   Present* 
* Alternate given voting rights. 
 

Also present; Planning and Zoning Administrator Jeff Gagnon, Principal Planner Brad Stein, Senior 
Planner Mario Velasquez, Assistant City Attorney Valencia Stubbs, and approximately 8 individuals from 
the general public. 
 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Mr. Gagnon – Informed the board of members unable to attend tonight’s meeting and requested voting 
rights for alternate board member Arthur Hamilton. 
 

DISCLOSURE BY BOARD MEMBERS TO THE AGENDA 
 

No disclosures provided.  Motion to approve the agenda by Ms. Jackson, 2nd by Ms. Brooks. 
Unanimous approval (5-0). 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Motion to approve minutes from October 24, 2013 by Mr. Hamilton, 2nd by Ms. Brooks. 
Unanimous approval (5-0). 

 

PRESENTATIONS – None 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. (SE-13-02) AN APPLICATION FROM BEAR NECESSITY DAYCARE 
REQUESTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPROVAL TO OPERATE A LARGE 
FAMILY CHILD CARE HOME, AT 1951 AVENUE ‘H’ EAST, WITHIN A SINGLE 
FAMILY STRUCTURE ON A 9,323 SQ. FT. PARCEL. 

 

1. Presentation 
 

Mr. Velasquez – Presented the special exception application to the board and general public. 
 

Ms. Davis asked if there are other childcare facilities in the area. 
 

Mr. Velasquez, Mr. McCoy, Mr. Gagnon, and Ms. Davis discussed the separation requirement between 
daycares. 
 



 

P&Z Minutes 11.14.2013 - Page 2 of 3 
 

Mr. McCoy, Mr. Gagnon, Ms. Davis, Mr. Hamilton, and Ms. Brooks discussed the special exception 
application fee waiver time frames, when they were approved, the resolutions related to these cases, the 
signage related to this business. 
 

2. Public Comments – None 
 

3. Board Comments – Prior discussion during presentation. No additional comments. 
 

Motion to approve application SE-13-02 by Ms. Brooks, 2nd by Mr. Coulton. Approved (4-1) 
with Ms. Davis dissenting. 

 

B. (SE-13-03) AN APPLICATION FROM A GRANDMA’S LOVE FAMILY DAYCARE 
REQUESTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPROVAL TO OPERATE A LARGE 
FAMILY CHILD CARE HOME, AT 1600 AVENUE ‘F’, WITHIN A SINGLE 
FAMILY STRUCTURE ON A 8,712 SQ. FT. PARCEL. 

 

1. Presentation 
 

Mr. Velasquez – Presented the special exception application to the board and general public. 
 

Mr. Coulton, Mr. McCoy, and Mr. Gagnon discussed children at play signage and how to implement it. 
 

2. Public Comments – None 
 

3. Board Comments – None 
 

Motion to approve application SE-13-03 by Ms. Brooks, 2nd by Mr. Coulton. Approved (4-1) 
with Ms. Davis dissenting. 

 

C. (SE-13-04) AN APPLICATION FROM EULA GRAY’S FAMILY DAYCARE 
REQUESTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPROVAL TO OPERATE A LARGE 
FAMILY CHILD CARE HOME, AT 301 WEST 22ND COURT, WITHIN A SINGLE 
FAMILY STRUCTURE ON A 6,684 SQ. FT. PARCEL. 

 

1. Presentation 
 

Mr. Velasquez – Presented the special exception application to the board and general public. 
 

2. Public Comments – None 
 

3. Board Comments – None 
 

Motion to approve application SE-13-04 by Ms. Brooks, 2nd by Mr. Coulton. Approved (4-1) 
with Ms. Davis dissenting. 

 

D. (SE-13-05) AN APPLICATION FROM ANDREA’S LITTLE ANGELS FAMILY 
CHILD CARE REQUESTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPROVAL TO 
OPERATE A LARGE FAMILY CHILD CARE HOME, AT 574 WEST 6TH STREET, 
WITHIN A MULTIPLE FAMILY STRUCTURE ON A 5,000 SQ. FT. PARCEL. 

 

1. Presentation. 
 

Mr. Velasquez – Presented the special exception application to the board members and the public. 
 

Mr. Hamilton, Mr. McCoy, and Mr. Velasquez discussed the amount of parking spaces required and 
provided by this applicant. 
 

Mr. Coulton and Mr. Gagnon discussed the special exception and if it is transferable. 
 

2. Public Comments – None 
 

3. Board Comments – Prior discussion during presentation. No additional comments. 
 



 

P&Z Minutes 11.14.2013 - Page 3 of 3 
 

Motion to approve application SE-13-05 by Ms. Brooks, 2nd by Mr. Coulton. Approved (4-1) 
with Mr. Hamilton dissenting. 

 

E. (SE-13-06) AN APPLICATION FROM BOATWRIGHT FAMILY CHILD CARE 
HOME REQUESTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPROVAL TO OPERATE A 
LARGE FAMILY CHILD CARE HOME, AT 390 WEST 33RD STREET, WITHIN A 
SINGLE FAMILY STRUCTURE ON A 8,030 SQ. FT. PARCEL. 

 

1. Presentation 
 

Mr. Velasquez – Presented the special exception application to the board and general public. 
 

Ms. Davis and Mr. Velasquez discussed the age ratios for children allowed in daycares. 
 

2. Public Comments – None 
 

3. Board Comments – Prior discussion during presentation. No additional comments. 
 

Motion to approve application SE-13-06 by Ms. Brooks, 2nd by Mr. Coulton. Approved (4-1) 
with Ms. Davis dissenting. 

 

GENERAL DISCUSSION 
 

A. Public Comments – None 
 

B. Correspondence – None 
 

Planning and Zoning Board Comments 
 

Mr. Hamilton and Mr. Gagnon discussed items associated with the marina project presentation given at an 
earlier P&Z Board Meeting. 
 

Mr. McCoy – Commented on the applications that the board has the authority to review and the 
importance of keeping discussions on target.   
 

1. Project Updates / Upcoming Projects – None 
 

2. Next scheduled P&Z Meeting – TBD, (December 12, 2013 or January 2014). 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion to adjourn by Ms. Brooks, 2nd by Ms. Davis at 7:40 pm. 



1 

STAFF REPORT 
Case No. SP-13-12 
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH              
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, PALM 
BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, FINDING THAT THE REMOVAL OF CONDITION 
NUMBER 14 IN THE FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY PETROLEUM STORAGE 
FACILITY DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT LIMITING FUEL STORAGE TO #6 
OIL IS NOT CONSIDERED TO BE A SUBSTANTIAL DEVIATION TO THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT AND WILL NOT CREATE SIGNIFICANT 
REGIONAL IMPACTS ON REGIONAL RESOURCES AND FACILITIES IN THE AREA; 
AND APPROVES AN AMENDMENT TO THE DRI TO REMOVE CONDITION 14 OF 
APPROVAL FROM THE ORIGINAL 1974 DRI THAT RESTRICTS STORAGE OF 
PETROLEUM ON THE SITE TO #6 OIL; AND APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 
DRI SITE PLAN TO PROVIDE FOR A TWO PHASE DEVELOPMENT TO RETROFIT 
AN EXISTING FUEL TANK, ADD A DOUBLE WALL CONTAINMENT SYSTEM, ADD A 
STORMWATER DETENTION POND, ADD FUELING BAYS, ADD LANDSCAPING, 
AND ADD A 25K GALLON FUEL TANK; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
A. Applicant: The applicant is Florida Power & Light Company (FPL) 
 
B. Request:  The applicant is requesting an amendment to the 1974 DRI conditions of 

approval to remove the restriction limiting fuel storage to #6 oil and a site plan 
approval that will allow conversion of an existing fuel tank from #6 oil to Ultra Low 
Sulfur Diesel including the addition of a double wall containment system, stormwater 
retention pond, fueling bays, landscaping and a 25K gallon fuel tank to be completed 
in two phases.   

 
C. Location:  The property is located at the east end of 2400 Port West Blvd. 
 
D. Property Description and Uses: The subject property description and uses are as 

follows: 
  
 Size:  72 acres total 

Existing Use:  Multiple Industrial Buildings, Storage Tanks and Natural Gas 

Compressor Station 

Future Land Use:  Industrial   

Zoning:  General Industrial (IG) 

 
E. Adjacent Property Description and Uses:  The adjacent uses are as follows: 
 

North:  Wooded Area / RO 

South:  Water, Large Power Lines / U 

East:   I-95, East of I-95 Cheney Brothers Inc./ IG 

West:   Water, Industrial / IG 

 



2 

F. Background: The DRI was originally approved by Palm Beach County on May 7, 
1974 by Palm Beach County Resolution 74-334.  The area was then annexed into 
the City of Riviera Beach on August 7, 1985 by City of Riviera Beach Resolution 176-
85.  On December 16, 1992 a finding of non-substantial deviation for a transmission 
tower was approved by the City of Riviera Beach by Resolution 206-92.  On 
February 16, 2011 a finding of non-substantial deviation for a natural gas 
compressor station was approved by the City of Riviera Beach by Resolution No. 21-
11. 

 
The 1974 DRI document imposed storage conditions upon the DRI limiting storage to 
#6 oil. Times have changed and cleaner fuels are now available.  At the same time, 
as some of FPL’s power plants are converted to cleaner burning natural gas, the 
storage demands for #6 oil have diminished.  Therefore, the #6 oil restriction is no 
longer viable.   
 
FPL proposes to use its property for storage of alternative fuel, specifically at this 
time Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel.  The converted Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel fuel tank would 
allow for FPL’s regional emergency operations fuel storage tank facility to provide a 
nearby option for fueling FPL’s fleet vehicles during emergency operations.  During 
emergencies, FPL, as a first responder, must ensure fuel is available for fleet 
vehicles necessary to restore electrical power. To comply with Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection regulations, a second containment wall will be constructed 
around the Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel tank.   
 
It is anticipated that the 4.8M gallon tank will be filled once each year prior to 
hurricane season.  Over the course of the year periodic withdrawals will occur for 
FPL fleet vehicles, leaving enough fuel during hurricane season should an 
emergency arise.  All fuel loading and unloading will occur from tanker trucks. 
Individual vehicles will not fuel from the facility.   
 

G. Proposed Development/ Use: The proposed development will consist of two 
phases.  Phase I will include retrofitting the existing 4.6M gallon tank to allow for 
storage of Ultra Low Sulfur Diesel, a double wall containment system around the 
4.6M gallon tank, stormwater retention pond, new landscape buffer along the 
Northwest corner of the site, two fueling bays and modifications to the internal drive 
lane for tanker trucks.  Phase II will include the addition of two fueling bays bringing 
the total number of fueling bays to four, relocating of the stormwater pond, 
construction of an additional 25K fuel tank and modifications to the internal drive 
lanes. 
  

H. Staff Analysis:  
 

Proposed Use: The proposed use is consistent with the future land use, 
zoning and current uses located within the site. 
 
Zoning Regulations: The development complies with the City’s Land 
Development Regulations. 

 
Comprehensive Plan: The proposed use is consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 



3 

Compatibility:  The proposed project is compatible with the surrounding 
parcels and current uses located on the site. 
 
Levels of Service:  City services are currently available to the site. 
 
Landscaping:  The proposed landscape plan is compatible with the City’s 
Land Development Code.   
 
Parking/ Traffic:  Adequate parking has been provided in accordance with 
the City of Riviera Beach Land Development Regulations and will not be 
affected by the application.  Traffic impacts are minimal and within the City’s 
and County’s concurrency requirements. 
 

I. Recommendation:  
 
Staff recommends approval of the finding that the DRI amendment removing the 
limitation to storage of #6 oil (condition 14) does not create a substantial deviation to 
the approved DRI, and that the site plan amendment as set forth in the site plan 
dated January 24, 2014 by Jon E. Schmidt and Associates should be approved with 
the following condition: 

 
1. Prior to obtaining building permits for any portion of the Phase II build out FPL 

will obtain all required South Florida Water Management District approvals. 
 

2. Construction must be initiated within 18 months of the effective date of this 
resolution in accordance with Section 31-60(a), of the City Code of Ordinances. 

 
3. A two-year landscaping bond for 110% of the value of landscaping and irrigation 

shall be required before certificate of occupancy is issued. 
 

4. All future advertising must state that the development is in the City of Riviera 
Beach.  A fine of $500 per day will be levied against the property owner for 
violation of this condition. 

 
 





















S Interstate 95

N Interstate 95

E Holly Ln

Co
ng

res
s A

ve

Port West Blvd

Ga
rd

en
 R

dWestroads Dr

Cheney Way

Dr Martin Luther King Jr Blvd

W 12th St

N 
Co

ng
res

s A
ve

Bee Line Hwy

W 9th St

Freeport Ln

Northpoint Pkwy

Lu
ca

ya
 D

r

Nassau Dr
W 10th St

I

0 1,000 2,000500 Feet FPL NOPC
Fleet Fueling

2400 Port West Blvd
Riviera Beach, FLSubject Area

Subject Area 



1 

STAFF REPORT 
Case No. SP-14-01 
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH              
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH, 
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO A 
SITE PLAN ORIGINALLY APPROVED OCTOBER 2002 FOR 122,725 
SQUARE FEET OF INDUSTRIAL OFFICE AND WAREHOUSE FACILITY FOR 
THE NEW CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH PUBLIC SERVICE COMPLEX TO 
HOUSE FIRE, POLICE AND PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENTS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
A. Applicant:  City of Riviera Beach 

 
B. Request:  The applicant is requesting an amendment to a Site Plan to convert an 

existing industrial office and warehouse property to the City’s New Public Service 
Complex for Police, Fire and Public Works Departments. 
 

C. Location:  1481 West 15th Street. 
 
D. Property Description and Uses: The subject property description and uses are as 

follows: 
  
 Size:  13.3 acres  

Existing Use:  Industrial office and warehouse.  

Future Land Use:  Industrial 

Zoning:  General Industrial (IG) 

 
E. Adjacent Property Description and Uses:  The adjacent uses are as follows: 
 

North: United Parcel Service (UPS), Industrial land use, and General Industrial 

zoning classification (IG) 

South: Industrial Condo with Various Industrial businesses, Industrial land use, 

and General Industrial zoning classification (IG) 

East: Trucking Distribution warehouse and Storage, Industrial land use, and 

General Industrial zoning classification (IG) 

West: Directly west of the property is a 60 foot wide drainage canal. Located 

across the canal is single family residential, Single Family Residential land use, 

and Residential zoning classification (RS-6, RS-8). 

 
F. Background: the property was originally built and developed for Gulf Stream 

Lumber in 2004, but due to the economy Gulf Stream pulled out of the facility and 
sold it to Global Energy United (GEU) who planned to use the location for a solar 
power manufacturing plant.  The plant was not built and GEU leased the property to 
Zachry Construction Corporation, which is constructing the new Florida Power and 
Light Energy Center located in the City east of US 1 Broadway south of the Port of 



2 

Palm Beach.  The City purchased the property November 7, 2012 by Resolution 128-
12 for 6.6 million dollars. The City intends to renovate the existing Industrial office 
and warehouse facility to replace the aging City facilities for Police, Fire and Public 
Works, and to construct a new Emergency Operations Center (EOC).  After the 
approval of the purchase the City than approved an amendment to the City’s Capital 
Improvement Plan on January 2, 2013 by Ordinance 4022 to include the cost of the 
purchase and renovations for 13 million dollars to the proposed Public Service 
Complex.  
 

G. Proposed Development/Use: The City is requesting an amendment to an existing 
Industrial office and warehouse site consisting of 16.3 acres to modify the property 
and existing buildings for new Police, Fire and Public Works departments, and to 
construct a new Emergency Operations Center.  The main building is 122,725 
square feet and will be converted to the new Police Facility, Fire Station with offices, 
and EOC. The buildings located to the southeast side of the property will be 
converted to the new Public Works offices, maintenance bays and storage.  The 
entire site will be fenced and gated with limited access.  Public parking areas are 
located on the south side of the property and parallel parking along Avenue R on the 
west side of the property.  
 

H. Staff Analysis:  
 

Proposed Use: The proposed amendment to the site plan is consistent with 
the City’s Land Development Regulations.  

 
Comprehensive Plan:  The proposed site plan amendment is consistent with 
the proposed City’s Comprehensive Plan Amendment. 
 
Compatibility:  The proposed project is compatible with the surrounding 
parcels and uses. 
 
Levels of Service:  City services such as water, sewer and paved roads are 
currently available for the development. 
 
Landscaping:  The proposed landscape plan is compatible with the City’s 
Land Development Code.   
 
Parking/Traffic:  Adequate parking has been provided in accordance with 
the City of Riviera Beach Land Development regulations. 
 

I. Recommendation:  
Staff recommends approval of the proposed site plan amendment from an existing 
Industrial office and warehouse site consisting of 16.3 acres to a renovated complex 
to accommodate new Police, Fire and Public works departments. 
 

1. Construction must be initiated within 18 months of the effective date of this 
resolution in accordance with Section 31-60(a), of the City Code of 
Ordinances. 

 
2. Palm Beach County Traffic Engineering suggests the City provide an 

exclusive West Bound Left turn lane at the intersection of Congress Ave and 
13th Street and exclusive East Bound Right turn lane at the intersection of 
Australian Ave and 13th Street (see attached letter). 



3 

3. Staff recommends a vegetative buffer be installed on the Westside of Avenue 
R to reduce noise and traffic impacts to residents west of the canal. 

The project was noticed in the Palm Beach Post February 10th, notices were sent to 
property owners within 500 feet of the facility and signs were posted at the property’s 
north, south and west sides.  









W 13th St

Av
en

ue
 RAv

en
ue

 S

W 15th St
Av

en
ue

 P

W Blue Heron Blvd

W 18th St

W 17th St

W 16th St

W 19th St

W 14th St

W 12th St

W 20th St

W 21st St

W 22nd St

W 12th Ct

W 15th St

Av
en

ue
 R

Subject Area

Public Service Complex
Comprehensive Plan Amendment
Future Land Use Change and Rezoning

Legend
Subject Area
Roads
Parcels 



RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA…. “The Best Waterfront City In Which To Live, Work & Play” 

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH                      •                P. O. Drawer 10682            •                 RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA  33419 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS                                              INTER-DEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATION 

Tel. (561) 845-4080                                                     Fax (561) 840-4845 

 

TO:  Brad Stein, Principal Planner 
FROM:  Terrence N. Bailey, City Engineer 
DATE: 2/10/14 
RE:   Riviera Beach Public Services Complex - Site Plan Submittal  
=========================================================================== 

Mr. Stein, it is with great pleasure that they engineering department submits the following 

documents in response to site plan review comments: 

 

Building and Permits 

1. As it relates to Riviera Beach Code 25-127, a memo was provided to the building 

department on January 29, 2014 demonstrating compliance with the above referenced 

code section. A copy of the cover letter is enclosed. 

2. The design criterion for an Emergency Operations Center of 220 mph is noted and all 

appropriate Florida Building Code requirements shall be met through the design of the 

facility. 

 

 

Utilities 
1. The design revisions requested have been noted and all requirements shall be met through the 

design of the facility. 

 

 

Planning and Zoning 

1. Provide phasing plan for complex including estimated timeframes. 

Response: The current intention of the design team is that public works improvements 

shall encompass phase 1 and will commence immediately. The improvements associated 

with the police department shall be phase 2 and also implemented immediately. Phase 3 

shall be construction of the fire department administration and fire station. A more 

specific and detailed timeline for phase 3 is not available as the implementation is budget 

driven and determination of a course of action is currently in process.   

 

2. Provide floor plans delineating department’s areas Police, Fire, etc. 

Response: Please see the enclosed floor plan.  

 

3. Label the Fire storage area in the NW parking lot. 

Response: Please see the revised site plan enclosed.  

 

4. Provide the schedule for trains entering and exiting site from the FEC spur. 

Response: A request has been made to the FEC for a schedule of trains utilizing the spur 

in question, and shall be provided as soon as it becomes available.  
 

5. Provide color elevations and show any proposed façade improvements for exterior of building. 

Response: Please see the revised color renderings enclosed.  

 

 



RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA…. “The Best Waterfront City In Which To Live, Work & Play” 

 

6. Label and show location of E. O. C. on site plan. 

Response: Please see the revised site plan enclosed.  

 

7. Provide traffic plan for public service vehicles and for employees to parking areas and bays 

entering and exiting site. 

Response: Please see the revised site plan enclosed.  

 

8. How will public service vehicles go west on Blue Heron at Avenue R and Avenue P? 

Response: Engineering Department has been in communication with the Florida 

Department of Transportation in reference to modifying the median opening at Blue 

Heron and Avenue P to allow Fire Department vehicles access to the west. The DOT has 

provided preliminary approval of the modifications and final approval will occur as a 

component of the normal permitting process for the DOT.  

 

9. Landscaping buffering should be provided on the Westside of Avenue R for the residences 

along the canal and Avenue R. 

Response: The canal along the western portion of Avenue R is a critical component of the 

City’s drainage network and space does not allow for a landscape buffer in this area. 

  

10. Rail spur in parking lot conflicts with the parking. Please explain. 

Response: The existing rail spur extending into the site has been abandoned by the FEC 

and the fee simple land is owned by the City. The site is constructed to allow the free flow 

of vehicles across the rail spur. Asphalt and concrete abut the rails allowing vehicles to 

cross unabated thus eliminating any potential for conflict with the proposed parking. 

 

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Terrence Bailey, P.E.        

City Engineer        





RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA…. “The Best Waterfront City In Which To Live, Work & Play” 

CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH                      •                P. O. Drawer 10682            •                 RIVIERA BEACH, FLORIDA  33419 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS                                              INTER-DEPARTMENTAL COMMUNICATION 

Tel. (561) 845-4080                                                     Fax (561) 840-4845 

 

TO:  Peter Ringle, Building Official 
FROM:  Terrence N. Bailey, PE, City Engineer 
DATE: 1/29/14 
RE:   SP-14-01 – Public Safety Building - Site Plan Review  
=========================================================================== 

Ordinance 25-127 reads as follows: 

 

Sec. 25-127. Critical facility.  

Construction of new critical facilities shall be, to the extent possible, located outside 

the limits of the special flood hazard area (SFHA) (100-year floodplain). Construction of new 

critical facilities shall be permissible within the SFHA if no feasible alternative site is available. 

Critical facilities constructed within the SFHA shall have the lowest floor elevated three feet or 

more above the level of the base flood elevation at the site. Floodproofing and sealing 

measures must be taken to ensure that toxic substances will not be displaced by or released 

into floodwaters. Access routes elevated to or above the level of the base flood elevation shall 

be provided to all critical facilities to the extent possible. 

 

 

The proposed Public Safety Complex is located outside of the 100year flood zone and within the 500year 

zone B according to the FEMA 1982 flood panel. The draft FEMA flood panel issued May 31, 2013 has 

the area surrounding the Public Safety Facility as outside of the 500year flood zone. In accordance with 

City of Riviera Beach Master Stormwater Plan, the 100 year flood elevation along the RC-1 Canal 

between 13
th

 street and Blue Heron is approximately 14.8 NGVD(16.3 NAVD). The finished floor 

elevation of the Public Safety Building is 20.0 NAVD providing three feet of freeboard above the 100 

year flood elevation. In addition the parking lot ranges from a low of 16.5 to elevation 18 in the northern 

portion. The elevation of the intersection of 15
th

 Street and Avenue R is approximately 16.7 NAVD thus 

making Avenue R the accessible route to the DOT thoroughfare along Blue Heron Boulevard.   

    

  

 

 
 

Terrence Bailey, P.E.        

City Engineer        











































1 

STAFF REPORT 
Case No. LU-14-01 
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH              
 
AN APPLICATION FROM THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH REQUESTING 
APPROVAL OF A COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE AMENDMENT, FROM 
INDUSTRIAL TO COMMUNITY FACILITY, IN ORDER TO FACILITATE THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH PUBLIC SERVICES 
COMPLEX, LOCATED AT 1481 WEST 15TH STREET, ON 13.3 ACRES, THE 
LAND USE AMENDMENT WAS NOTICED IN THE PALM BEACH POST 
FEBRUARY 10TH, NOTICES WERE SENT TO PROPERTY OWNERS WITHIN 
500 FEET OF THE FACILITY AND SIGNS WERE POSTED AT THE 
PROPERTY’S NORTH, SOUTH AND WEST SIDES.  
 
A. Applicant:  City of Riviera Beach 

 
B. Request:  The applicant is requesting an amendment to the City’s Comprehensive 

Plan Land Use Map from Industrial to Community Facility for the City’s New Public 
Service Complex for Police, Fire and Public Works Departments. 
 

C. Location:  1481 West 15th Street. 
 
D. Property Description and Uses: The subject property description and uses are as 

follows: 
  
 Size:  13.3 acres  

Existing Use:  Industrial office and warehouse.  

Future Land Use:  Industrial 

Zoning:  General Industrial (IG) 

 
E. Adjacent Property Description and Uses:  The adjacent uses are as follows: 
 

North: United Parcel Service (UPS), Industrial land use, and General Industrial 

zoning classification (IG) 

South: Industrial Condo with Various Industrial businesses, Industrial land use, 

and General Industrial zoning classification (IG) 

East: Trucking Distribution warehouse and Storage, Industrial land use, and 

General Industrial zoning classification (IG) 

West: Directly west of the property is a 60 foot wide drainage canal. Located 

across the canal is single family residential, Single Family Residential land use, 

and Residential zoning classification (RS-6, RS-8). 

 
F. Background: the property was originally built and developed for Gulf Stream 

Lumber in 2004, but due to the economy Gulf Stream pulled out of the facility and 
sold it to Global Energy United (GEU) who planned to use the location for a solar 
power manufacturing plant.  The plant was not built and GEU leased the property to 



2 

Zachry Construction Corporation, which is constructing the new Florida Power and 
Light Energy Center located in the City east of US 1 Broadway south of the Port of 
Palm Beach.  The City purchased the property November 7, 2012 by Resolution 128-
12 for 6.6 million dollars. The City intends to renovate the existing Industrial office 
and warehouse facility to replace the aging City facilities for Police, Fire and Public 
Works, and to construct a new Emergency Operations Center (EOC).  After the 
approval of the purchase the City than approved an amendment to the City’s Capital 
Improvement Plan on January 2, 2013 by Ordinance 4022 to include the cost of the 
purchase and renovations.  
 

G. Proposed Development/Use: The City is requesting an amendment to an existing 
Industrial office and warehouse site consisting of 16.3 acres to modify the property 
and existing buildings for new Police, Fire and Public Works departments, and to 
construct a new Emergency Operations Center.  The main building is 122,725 
square feet and will be converted to the new Police Facility, Fire Station with offices, 
and EOC. The buildings located to the southeast side of the property will be 
converted to the new Public Works offices, maintenance bays and storage.  The 
entire site will be fenced and gated with limited access.  Public parking areas are 
located on the south side of the property and parallel parking along Avenue R on the 
west side of the property.  
 

H. Staff Analysis:  
 

Comprehensive Plan:  The proposed Comprehensive Plan Land Use 
amendment from Industrial to Community Facility for the City’s New Public 
Service Complex for Police, Fire and Public Works Departments will be 
compatible with the surrounding parcels and uses. 
 

I. Recommendation:  
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Comprehensive Plan Land Use 
amendment from Industrial to Community Facility for the City’s New Public Service 
Complex for Police, Fire and Public Works Departments. 
 

The Land Use Amendment was noticed in the Palm Beach Post February 10th, notices 
were sent to property owners within 500 feet of the facility and signs were posted at the 
property’s north, south and west sides.  

 
 

 

 



1 

STAFF REPORT 
Case No. RZ-14-01 
CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH              
 
AN APPLICATION FROM THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH REQUESTING 
APPROVAL OF A ZONING CHANGE, FROM GENERAL INDUSTRIAL TO 
COMMUNITY FACILITY, IN ORDER TO FACILITATE THE DEVELOPMENT OF 
THE CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH PUBLIC SERVICES COMPLEX, LOCATED AT 
1481 WEST 15TH STREET, ON 13.3 ACRES, THE REZONING WAS NOTICED 
IN THE PALM BEACH POST FEBRUARY 10TH, NOTICES WERE SENT TO 
PROPERTY OWNERS WITHIN 500 FEET OF THE FACILITY AND SIGNS 
WERE POSTED AT THE PROPERTY’S NORTH, SOUTH AND WEST SIDES.  
 
A. Applicant:  City of Riviera Beach 

 
B. Request:  The applicant is requesting a Rezoning of parcels on the City’s Zoning 

Map from General Industrial (IG) to Community Facility (CF) for the City’s New Public 
Service Complex for Police, Fire and Public Works Departments. 
 

C. Location:  1481 West 15th Street. 
 
D. Property Description and Uses: The subject property description and uses are as 

follows: 
  
 Size:  13.3 acres  

Existing Use:  Industrial office and warehouse.  

Future Land Use:  Industrial 

Zoning:  General Industrial (IG) 

 
E. Adjacent Property Description and Uses:  The adjacent uses are as follows: 
 

North: United Parcel Service (UPS), Industrial land use, and General Industrial 

zoning classification (IG) 

South: Industrial Condo with Various Industrial businesses, Industrial land use, 

and General Industrial zoning classification (IG) 

East: Trucking Distribution warehouse and Storage, Industrial land use, and 

General Industrial zoning classification (IG) 

West: Directly west of the property is a 60 foot wide drainage canal. Located 

across the canal is single family residential, Single Family Residential land use, 

and Residential zoning classification (RS-6, RS-8). 

 
F. Background: the property was originally built and developed for Gulf Stream 

Lumber in 2004, but due to the economy Gulf Stream pulled out of the facility and 
sold it to Global Energy United (GEU) who planned to use the location for a solar 
power manufacturing plant.  The plant was not built and GEU leased the property to 
Zachry Construction Corporation, which is constructing the new Florida Power and 



2 

Light Energy Center located in the City east of US 1 Broadway south of the Port of 
Palm Beach.  The City purchased the property November 7, 2012 by Resolution 128-
12 for 6.6 million dollars. The City intends to renovate the existing Industrial office 
and warehouse facility to replace the aging City facilities for Police, Fire and Public 
Works, and to construct a new Emergency Operations Center (EOC).  After the 
approval of the purchase the City than approved an amendment to the City’s Capital 
Improvement Plan on January 2, 2013 by Ordinance 4022 to include the cost of the 
purchase and renovations.  
 

G. Proposed Development/Use: The City is requesting an amendment to an existing 
Industrial office and warehouse site consisting of 16.3 acres to modify the property 
and existing buildings for new Police, Fire and Public Works departments, and to 
construct a new Emergency Operations Center.  The main building is 122,725 
square feet and will be converted to the new Police Facility, Fire Station with offices, 
and EOC. The buildings located to the southeast side of the property will be 
converted to the new Public Works offices, maintenance bays and storage.  The 
entire site will be fenced and gated with limited access.  Public parking areas are 
located on the south side of the property and parallel parking along Avenue R on the 
west side of the property.  
 

 
H. Recommendation:  

Staff recommends approval of the Rezoning of parcels on the City’s Zoning Map 
from General Industrial (IG) to Community Facility (CF) for the City’s New Public 
Service Complex for Police, Fire and Public Works Departments. 
 

The Rezoning was noticed in the Palm Beach Post February 10th, notices were sent to 
property owners within 500 feet of the facility and signs were posted at the property’s 
north, south and west sides.  

 
 

 


	Planning&ZoningBoardMeetingPacket.2.27.2014
	P&Z AGENDA 2.27.2014
	Thursday, February 27, 2014                        600 West Blue Heron Boulevard
	II. ROLL CALL
	III. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA
	IV. DISCLOSURE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND ADOPTION OF AGENDA
	V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – November 14, 2013
	VI. PRESENTATIONS – None
	VII. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None
	VIII. NEW BUSINESS

	IX. GENERAL DISCUSSION
	X. ADJOURNMENT
	NOTICE: In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons in need of a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding shall, within a reasonable time prior to any proceeding, contact the office of the Legislative Aide of the City of Riviera Beach, 600 West Blue Heron Boulevard, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404, Telephone 561-845-4095 or TDD 561-840-3350, www.rivierabch.com.


	11.14.2013 PnZ Minutes V.2

	PnZ Packet 02272014
	FPL PnZ Packet 02272014
	FPL PnZ Packet 02272014
	FPL PnZ Packet 02272014
	STAFF REPORT CASE NO 13-12 - FPL
	Site Plan PH I
	Site Plan PH II
	LP-1
	LP-2
	LP-3

	PBC RES 74-334 05071974 

	Map FPL NOPC Fleet Fueling

	PSC PnZ Packet
	PSC Staff Report SP-14-01
	PBC Traffic Performance Standards Review 01272014
	PBP Ad 02102014
	PSC Ad Map
	PSC Response to Comments memo 2-10-14
	Building Comments SP-14-01
	Memo to PRingle 1-29-14
	SP 2-10-14
	PSC Landscape Plan PnZ
	Site Plan Application 1-18-14 11
	Site Plan Application 1-18-14 12
	Site Plan Application 1-18-14 13
	Site Plan Application 1-18-14 14
	Site Plan Application 1-18-14 15

	Elevations PSC
	Elevations PW
	FIRST FLOOR PLAN
	SECOND FLOOR PLAN
	PW Floor Plan
	FEC RR Track Parcel Sale
	PSC Staff Report LU-14-01
	PSC Staff Report RZ-14-01



